
   
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 18 November 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Planning 
Committee 
 

(Informal Meeting) 
 

     
 

 

Friday, 26 November 2021 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - Council Offices,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Helen Crawford (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor David Bellamy, Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor Phil Dilks, 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Councillor Penny Milnes,  
Councillor Charmaine Morgan, Councillor Robert Reid, Councillor Penny Robins, 
Councillor Ian Selby, Councillor Judy Stevens and Councillor Jacky Smith 
 

 

Agenda 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

 
2.   Revision to the planning protocol and accompanying guidance 

To consider a revised version of the planning protocol and 
accompanying guidance.  

 

(Pages 3 - 28) 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Revision to the planning protocol and accompanying 
guidance 

To consider a revised version of the planning protocol and accompanying guidance.  
 

Report Author 

William Tse (Project Lead) 

 
01476 406376 

 w.tse@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

High Performing Council Governance All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Emma Whittaker (Assistant Director of Planning) 8 November 2021 

Approved by: Nicola McCoy-Brown (Director of Growth and 
Culture) 

9 November 2021 

Signed off by: Nick Robins (Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy) 

10 November 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision makers 

It is recommended that the Planning Committee: 

1. Proposes any further consequential minor changes arising from the revised version of 
the protocols and guidance as set out in Annex A and C, which will be reported to 
Constitution Committee in December 2021.  

 

Planning Committee 

Date 26 November 2021 

Report of: 
 
Councillor Nick Robins 

  Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy 

         

3

Agenda Item 2

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

The Background to the Report 

1.1 Planning has a positive and proactive role to play at the heart of South Kesteven District 

Council, helping to stimulate growth whilst looking after important environmental areas. 

Planning helps to translate the Council’s Corporate Plan (2020-2023) goals into action, 

balancing social, economic and environmental needs to achievement sustainable 

development.  

1.2 The purpose of the planning protocol is to provide guidance on the standards to be 

followed in relation to planning matters, which supplements the Members Code of 

Conduct. 

1.3 Taking account of recommendations from the independent Planning Service Review and 

the comments made by Members at an Informal Planning Committee Meeting held on 27 

September 2021, this report provides a revised version of the planning protocol and 

accompanying guidance. Annex A details the proposed revisions to Article 16 (page 8). 

The table in Annex B (page 13) identifies the main changes to Article 16 (in Annex A) and 

an explanation for the adjustments. Annex C sets out a draft protocol aimed at assisting 

Members when approaching planning applications and the Planning Committee (page 20).  

1.4 Decisions on planning applications should be made promptly. Members are not bound to 

follow the advice of Officers. This can result in a Member of Committee overturning the 

advice of Officers. The Committee must determine the application in accordance with the 

Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Often decisions are 

based on judgement with the decision-maker balancing different material planning 

considerations. The weight to be given to any matter is at the discretion of the decision-

maker. This means that the Committee may balance an application differently to Officers. 

However, where the Committee does reach a different conclusion to Officers it is important 

that this is based on clear, sound planning judgement based on evidence.  

1.5 It is proposed to amend Article 9(c) of the Constitution which currently sets out that where 

the Committee is minded to overturn an Officer recommendation and refuse an 

application, they should enter into a cooling-off period to reflect upon that decision. 

Instead, there should be clear guidance within the protocol setting out that how these 

decisions are reached and that decisions should be taken at Committee, without further 

delay.  

1.6 Training regarding the member code of conduct and further items pertaining to material 

planning consideration will remain accessible to all members. A committed approach to 

training provides clarity for members who are often engaged by the public regarding 

planning applications. 

Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Detailed consideration of the amendments to the planning protocols was held on 27 

September 2021. The informal Planning Committee made recommendations to the 

Cabinet Member for Planning and Planning Policy. All members were given the 

opportunity to speak and take part in the discussion.  

Available Options Considered 

3.1 Given Councillors were not comfortable with the version of the planning protocol 

presented to 27 September 2021 Planning Committee, the ‘do nothing’ option was 

discounted.  

4



 

 
 

Preferred Option 

4.1 The preferred option is for Members to note the proposed revisions to Article 16 of the 

Constitution (Delegation to the Assistant Director of Planning) at Annex A and proposed 

draft protocols as set out in Annex C and request any further consequential minor 

changes.  

Reason for the Recommendation  

5.1 The existing planning protocol and guidance for Members is out of date. The proposed 

protocol reflects developments in the law and current thinking as to Members’ involvement 

in planning matters.  

Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The next step is to include (as appropriate) consequential minor changes in the revised 

version of the protocol and guidance to be presented to Constitution Committee on 6 

December 2021. The report for the Constitution Committee will provide alignment with the 

current Constitution ahead of Full Council 27 January 2021.  

Financial Implications  

7.1 There will be no direct financial implications arising from the implementation of the stated 

protocols as the subject relates to procedural matters. Councillor expenses may reduce as 

a result of fewer individual site visits and a favour towards committee site visits. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Assistant Director of Finance 

and Section 151 Officer  

Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 External, independent, reviews are a valuable way of assessing the Council’s current 

policies, protocols and governance which can contribute to the sharing and 

implementation of good practice and improve the way in which services are delivered.  

8.2 The are no detrimental legal and governance implications to specifically highlight as a 

result of the recommendations proposed as part of the review. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Head of Democratic Services and 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 The Planning Service Review identified improvements to support the decision making by 

Officers and Members. These impacts are not anticipated to have any direct impact on 

equality or safeguarding.  

9.2 As this report is part of consultation, an equalities impact assessment is not required. 

However, an equalities impact assessment will be examined and will form part of the 

report at a future Constitution Committee.  

Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 The determination of planning applications is a statutory administrative process involving 
the application of national, strategic, local and neighbourhood level planning policies within 
a legislative framework. Planning decisions can be appealed by unsuccessful applicants 
and challenged by way of judicial review by aggrieved parties. Complaints regarding 
maladministration and injustice can also be made to the Local Government Ombudsman.  

5



 

 
 

 
10.2 To mitigate these risks, it is vital that those involved in the determination of planning 

applications, and particularly Officers and Councillors, act reasonably and fairly to 
applicants, supporters and objectors. Having contemporary protocols and guidance will 
reinforce Councillors’ community engagement role whilst maintaining a robust standard of 
probity that minimises the risk of legal challenge.  

Community Safety Implications  

11.1 There are no direct community safety implications resulting from this report. 

How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District Council’s 

declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 Site visits which are made collectively will reduce the impact on vehicular travel to the 

destination of the site visit. Members are reminded that a regular schedule of committee 

site visits will continue to operate. 

12.2 This will assist the reduction in emissions and additional travel. A common-sense 

application of this matter will be applied. 

Other Implications (where significant) 

13.1 None identified. 

Background Papers 

14.1 Consultation on suggested Amendments to Planning Protocols, Report to Informal 

Planning Committee 27 September 2021 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30972/Consultation%20on%20sugge

sted%20Amendments%20to%20Planning%20Protocols.pdf  

Annex 

15.1 Annex A – Proposed Revisions to Article 16 of the Constitution 

15.2 Annex B – Planning Review Amends Table  

15.3 Annex C – Proposed draft protocols – Guidance for Members and Officers dealing with 

  Planning Matters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30972/Consultation%20on%20suggested%20Amendments%20to%20Planning%20Protocols.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30972/Consultation%20on%20suggested%20Amendments%20to%20Planning%20Protocols.pdf


 

  

This page has been intentionally left blank 

7



 ANNEX A 
 

 
 

Powers granted by the Council to the Assistant Director of Planning to deal with 

Planning Matters in accordance with the Planning Scheme of Delegation 

The Assistant Director of Planning may exercise and authorise in writing other officers 
appropriately qualified and trained to exercise the following powers under the Town and 
Country Planning Acts and other relevant legislation: 
 

• All decisions, responses or determinations arising in relation to applications for 
planning permission, Listed Building Consent, Advertisement Consent, Conservation 
Area Consent, Certificates of Lawfulness, Variation of Conditions applications (Section 
73 Applications) 

• Approval of reserved matters 

• Prior approvals, consents and consultations submitted to or received by the Council in 
accordance with all Town and Country Planning, Listed Building and associated 
legislation 

• To respond to consultations for the installation of overhead electricity cables under the 
Electricity Acts 

• To determine applications for the approval of details pursuant to conditions on planning 
permissions, prior approval, listed building consent, conservation area consent, 
hazardous substances consent or advertisement consent 

• To make Tree Preservation Orders and to determine applications made under the 
Order 

• To authorise the service of Building Preservation Notices 

• To settle claims of awards of costs awarded against the Council following successful 
appeals, by an applicant, against a Council planning decision 

 

 

Planning Scheme of Delegation  

Development Management 

All decisions, responses or determinations arising in relation to applications, approval of 

reserved matters, prior approvals, Certificates, consents and consultations, submitted to or 

received by the Council in accordance with all Town and Country Planning, Listed Building 

and related or associated legislation (including subordinate legislation and any consolidation, 

re-enactment or amendment thereto) shall be delegated to the Authorised Officer(s) as 

specified above, except the following: 

 

1. In respect of any particular ward: any application for planning permission, approval of 

reserved matters, conservation area consent, tree works approval or listed building 

consent where a Councillor from that ward or the adjoining ward has requested, in 

writing within 21 days of being notified of the application, that the application be 

considered by Committee.  Any request will be accompanied by a statement setting 

out the relevant substantive material planning reason that the application be 

determined by the Planning Committee and the referral is agreed by the Chairman of 

the Planning Committee. Any call-in request received after the initial 21-day notification 

period will be accompanied by a statement setting out the extenuating circumstances 

why the request could not have reasonably made within the notification period; any 

such late requests must be agreed by the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 

Planning Committee. 

1 

2 

1.1 

1.2 

2.1 

2.2 

8



 ANNEX A 
 

 
 

 

2. Any application which is a Departure from the Local Plan must be taken to the Planning 

Committee where it is the officer’s recommendation to approve the application. Where 

the Local Plan is silent on matters, but a proposal is in conformity to the National 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), then an application can be determined through 

the Scheme of Delegation. 

 

3. Applications that the Assistant Director for Planning considers that the 

application/notice/matter should be considered by Planning Committee. 

 

4. Applications for Reserved Matters where the original outline planning permission was 

determined by the Planning Committee1 

 

5. Applications submitted on behalf of the Council or where the Council has an interest 

in the development and/or land. 

 

6. Applications submitted by (includes where they may be acting as an agent), or on 

behalf of a District Councillor (or his/her spouse or partner or immediate family) or 

where a District Councillor lives in the adjoining property, a property opposite the 

application site or a property either side.  

 

7. The applicant or agent is a member of staff within the Authority. 

 

8. Where an officer who is a Member of the Council’s Senior Management Team or a 

Member of staff within the Planning Service or any member of staff within the Authority 

who could be seen as having a direct input to, and therefore influence on, application 

decisions, lives in the adjoining property, a property opposite the application site or a 

property either side.   

 

Where there are statutory time limits for making decisions or taking action where non-
determination within a set period automatically gives consent (e.g. agricultural buildings, 
demolitions and telecommunications determinations and notifications of works to trees in a 
conservation area), the Assistant Director of Planning or other appropriately qualified and 
trained officers authorised by them in writing, may determine the applications. The authorised 
officer will consider any objections received and, at their discretion, efforts will be made to 
resolve the objection before the expiry period. The existence of an objection will not alter the 
officer’s authority to make a decision in these instances. 
 
The Assistant Director of Planning and other appropriately trained and qualified officers 
authorised by them in writing, may also exercise the following functions: 
 

• Accepting Material minor amendments (Section 73 applications) and/or non-material 

minor amendments (Section 96a Applications) to approved plans 

• To adopt screening and scoping opinions under the Environmental Impact Assessment 
Regulations 

• To carry out and adopt Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats Regulations. 

 
1 In cases where the outline planning application was not determined by the Planning Committee, Councillors 
will need to use the “call-in” procedure should they wish to request that the Committee makes a decision on 
any Reserved Matters application. 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

2.8 

2.9 

2.10 

2.11 

2.7 

9



 ANNEX A 
 

 
 

• To make non-material additions, deletions, or amendments to the conditions to be 
attached to the grant of planning permission, listed building consent, conservation area 
consent, hazardous substances consent or advertisement consent, authorised by the 
Planning Committee or Council 

• To respond to notifications for proposed works to trees in Conservation Areas 

• Issuing hedgerow retention notices and general discharge of duties under the 
Hedgerow Regulations 1997 

• To determine applications relating to the High Hedge Legislation 

• Authorising powers of entry in respect of complaints and appeals under antisocial 
behaviour legislation 

• Entering into a Section 106 Agreement on a delegated planning application approval 
where no financial contributions are required. 

• Entering into planning performance agreements on behalf of the Council as the Local 
Planning Authority 

• Entering premises for statutory purposes 

• To determine the reasons for which planning permission, listed building consent, 
conservation area consent, hazardous substances consent, or advertisement consent, 
would have been refused where this is relevant to appeals against the non-
determination of applications 

• On a without prejudice basis in relation to appeals in the event that the Secretary of 
State or the appointed Inspector is minded to grant permission;  

o To suggest appropriate conditions to be imposed on planning permission, listed 
building consent, conservation area consent, hazardous substances consent 
or advertisement consent; and 

o To approve/make comments on the terms of Section 106 Agreements or 
Unilateral Undertakings 

 
 
Planning Service: enforcement 
The Assistant Director of Planning is authorised to carry out, and authorise in writing other 
officers with necessary training and qualifications, the following functions: 
 

• Administer cautions in respect of breaches of advertisement control and in order cases 
where, following authorisation, court proceedings are considered appropriate. 

• To make determinations that it is not expedient to take enforcement action 

• To remove or obliterate unauthorised placards or posters or display structures under 
the Town and Country Planning Act. 

• To serve Requisitions for Information requiring information as to interests in land or, if 
related to a planning contravention notice, activities carried out on the land 

• To serve Planning Contravention Notices on owners and occupiers of land where it 
appears that a breach of planning control has taken place 

• To serve the following notices following consultation with the Assistant Director for 
Legal and Democratic: 

▪ Enforcement notice 
▪ Breach of condition notice 
▪ Section 215 notice under the Town and Country Planning Act 
▪ Listed building enforcement notice 
▪ Hazardous substance Enforcement notice 
▪ Discontinuance Notices under the Control of Advertisement Regulations 
▪ Stop notice 
▪ Temporary stop notice 

 

3 

2.12 

3.1 

10



 ANNEX A 
 

 
 

• To accept or reject  such offers to remedy a breach of control as are made under the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

• To authorise the institution of legal proceedings in respect of any matter within the 

terms of reference of the Planning Committee and following consultation with Legal 

Services 

• To authorise the institution of legal proceedings for failure to respond to, or to give 

satisfactory information required by Requisitions for Information, or Planning 

Contravention Notices. 

Listed below are the circumstances where enforcement matters will be presented to the 

Planning Committee. All other matters will be dealt with by the ADP, or other duly authorised 

officer: 

i. Where the case involves a Member of the Council (or an immediate relative) or any 

employee of the Council (or an immediate relative). 

ii. Where there is a contravention of planning control involving the Council's own 

development that is unresolved through the planning system. 

iii. Issues of significant public interest. 

Street naming and Numbering 
The Assistant Director of Planning and other officers appropriately qualified, trained and 
authorised by them in writing, have authority to determine uncontested street naming and 
numbering applications. 
 
Planning Policy 
Following consultation with the relevant Cabinet Member and the local Ward Councillor(s), the 
Assistant Director of Planning is authorised to make decisions on the following: 
 

• Applications to designate a Neighbourhood Forum 

• To accept or decline repeat proposals for a Neighbourhood Development Plan or 
Neighbourhood Development Order 

• The validity and acceptance of proposals for a Neighbourhood Development 

• Plan or Neighbourhood Development Order 

• Appointing a person to carry out the examination of a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan or Neighbourhood Development Order 

• Decisions in respect of action to be taken in response to recommendations included 
within the Examiner’s Report and whether to modify the Plan or Referendum Area prior 
to submitting it for referendum 

 
The Assistant Director of Planning has delegated authority to determine applications for grant 
aid in relation to listed buildings and conservation areas with the following exceptions: 

• New applications which would commit the district council to expenditure in excess of 
£1,000 

• Applications for supplementary grant which would commit the district council to further 
expenditure in excess of £500 

• Applications where an applicant has requested reconsideration of a decision of the 
Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic. 

 

After consultation with the appropriate Portfolio Holder, to respond to policy and other planning 

documents relevant to the Council, prepared by other bodies. 

 

4 

5 

3.2 

3.3 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B   

Planning Review (Amends to Article 16) 

 

Summary 

Following the engagement with members, intrinsic amends to the constitutional documents will be required. These have been presented within the table below to allow direct comparison between 

the current and proposed version of Article 16 contained in the constitution. The table gives an explained reasoning for the amendments provided.  

 

Where the amendment relates to clarifying or amending a job title this will not be covered in the table below. The paragraph number refers to the paragraph numbers in the proposed Article 16 (as 

amended) and is used only for ease of reference for the purpose of discussion with Councillors. 

 

Original Paragraph 
(verbatim) 

Current Documentation 
What has changed Reason(s) for Amends 

Input towards 
Amendments 

 

• All decisions, responses or 
determinations arising in 
relation to applications 

• Approval of reserved matters 

• Prior approvals, consents and 
consultations submitted to or 
received by the Council in 
accordance with all Town and 
Country Planning, Listed 
Building and associated 
legislation. 

Section 1.2 

• All decisions, responses or determinations 
arising in relation to applications for 
planning permission, Listed Building 
Consent, Advertisement Consent, 
Conservation Area Consent, Certificates of 
Lawfulness, Variation of Conditions 
applications (Section 73 Applications) 

• Approval of reserved matters 

• Prior approvals, consents and 
consultations submitted to or received by 
the Council in accordance with all Town 
and Country Planning, Listed Building and 
associated legislation 

• To respond to consultations for the 
installation of overhead electricity cables 
under the Electricity Acts 

• To determine applications for the approval 
of details pursuant to conditions on 
planning permissions, prior approval, listed 
building consent, conservation area 
consent, hazardous substances consent 
or advertisement consent 

• To make Tree Preservation Orders and to 
determine applications made under the 
Order 

• To authorise the service of Building 
Preservation Notices 

• To settle claims of awards of costs 
awarded against the Council following 
successful appeals, by an applicant, 
against a Council planning decision 

 

 
In order to add clarity to the types of 
applications that can be determined by 
Officers (subject to the rules set out in 
Article 16) the list of applications has 
been expanded upon.   

 
Making of Tree Preservation Orders has 
been moved from elsewhere 

 
 

✓ The revised item now references specific 
requirements as contained within 
Legislation. 
 

✓ As requested by Councillors at the informal 
Committee, the revised items provide 
operational clarity as to which regulatory or 
legislative functions are covered by Article 
16. 

 
✓ This reduces ambiguity and ensures the 

service can make effective decisions in 
relation to various applications. 

 
✓ This delegation provides operational 

efficiency where expediency maybe required 
to ensure protection is given for buildings or 
trees. 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Outlined with Cllr 
Crawford (Chair 
of Planning) 

13



Annex B 

 All decisions, responses or determinations 
arising in relation to applications, approval of 
reserved matters, prior approvals, Certificates, 
consents and consultations, submitted to or 
received by the Council in accordance with all 
Town and Country Planning, Listed Building 
and related or associated legislation (including 
subordinate legislation and any consolidation, 
re-enactment or amendment thereto) shall be 
delegated to the Authorised Officer(s) as 
specified above, except the following 

Automatic referral of “Major” 
applications to Planning has been 
deleted 
 
 

✓ The removal of the automatic referral of 
“Major” applications has been proposed to 
be deleted.  This is to ensure that the 
Committee is dealing with the applications 
that Councillors wish to determine rather 
than have some applications automatically 
be referred.   This means that Members 
have responsibility in deciding which 
applications need to be presented to 
Committee. 
 

✓ This will mean that the Committee is focused 
on the strategic and/or contentious 
applications.   

 
✓ Long committee meetings mean that 

members of the public often have to wait for 
a considerable time for the application that 
they are interested in to be debated.  

 

 

 
Management Committee must:  
Be submitted on the appropriate 
pro-forma within three weeks of 
the circulation of details of the 
application 

• Include a statement that the 
Councillor has consulted the 
Ward Member(s) for those 
Ward(s) in which the 
application was made 

• Include a statement outlining 
material reasons why the 
proposal needs to be 
considered by Committee 

• Include a list of related 
Development Plan and 
national planning policies 

 
All requests will be acknowledged 
in writing and the reasons for 
referral included in the officer report 
to the Development Management 
Committee. 
 
When, in the opinion of the Service 
Manager, Development 
Management and Implementation, 
the reasons for the request do not 
constitute material planning 

Section 2.2 
In respect of any particular ward: any 
application for planning permission, approval 
of reserved matters, conservation area 
consent, tree works approval or listed building 
consent where a Councillor from that ward or 
the adjoining ward has requested, in writing 
within 21 days of being notified of the 
application, that the application be considered 
by Committee.  Any request will be 
accompanied by a statement setting out the 
relevant substantive material planning reason 
that the application be determined by the 
Planning Committee and the referral is agreed 
by the Chairman of the Planning Committee. 
Any call-in request received after the initial 21-
day notification period will be accompanied by 
a statement setting out the extenuating 
circumstances why the request could not have 
reasonably made within the notification period; 
any such late requests must be agreed by the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Planning 
Committee. 

 

The applications can only be called-in 
by the Ward Councillor(s) or the 
adjoining Ward Councillor(s).  
 
Consequently the requirement for the 
Councillor calling the application in to 
consult with the Ward Councillor is 
proposed to be deleted as it is 
unnecessary.  
 
It is proposed that the referral is agreed 
by the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee rather than the Assistant 
Director of Planning 

 
✓ The Ward Councillor(s) and adjoining Ward 

Councillor(s) will be responsible for deciding 
which applications in their ward should be 
determined by the Committee.  
 

✓ Rather than Officers having the final decision 
over the content of the agenda, it is 
proposed that the Chairman of the Planning 
Committee will work with Officers to reach 
this decision.   

 
✓ To aid Members’ knowledge around which 

applications have been submitted in their 
Wards, it has been agreed that Officers will 
notify each Ward Councillor of every 
planning application as well as sending out 
the Weekly List.  The notification will be by 
email. 

 
 

26th May Informal 
Session with 
Planning 
Committee 
 
20th July All 
member briefing 
and substitute 
Planning 
Members 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 
Cllr Dilks 
Comments noted 

14



Annex B 

considerations, the Service 
Manager, Development 
Management and Implementation 
will have the power to decline the 
request. 

regarding the 
sequencing of 
call-in. 

Any application submitted by or on 
behalf of the Council for its own 
developments, except for the 
approval of routine minor 
developments to which no objection 
has been received 

Section 2.5 
Applications submitted on behalf of the Council 
or where the Council has an interest in the 
development and/or land. 

 

The current constitution allows Officers 
to approve “routine minor developments 
to which no objection has been 
received”.  It is proposed that all 
applications where the Council has an 
interest in the application are referred to 
Committee 

✓ This is to ensure openness and 
transparency in the Council’s decision 
making 

26th May Informal 
Session with 
Planning 
Committee 
 
20th July All 
member briefing 
and substitute 
Planning 
Members 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Cllr Robins & Cllr 
Crawford 
Engagement 

Any application submitted by or on 
behalf of a Councillor of the 
authority (or their spouse or 
partner) or by or on behalf of a 
member of the Council’s Senior 
Management Team, or an 
employee within the Development 
Management or Planning Policy 
functions of the Council. 

Section 2.7 
The applicant or agent is a member of staff 
within the Authority 

This has been expanded to include any 
member of staff who may be seen to 
have a direct input to and therefore 
influence on application decisions.  

✓ This is to ensure openness and 
transparency in the Council’s decision 
making 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Cllr Robins & Cllr 
Crawford 
Engagement 

[New Revision – no prior 
reference available] 

Section 2.8 
Where an officer who is a Member of the 
Council’s Senior Management Team or a 
Member of staff within the Planning Service or 
any member of staff within the Authority who 
could be seen as having a direct input to, and 
therefore influence on, application decisions, 
lives in the adjoining property, a property 
opposite the application site or a property 
either side.   

 

This will ensure that where a member of 
staff who could influence the decision 
making process lives next door and 
therefore could be affected by the 
proposal will be referred to Planning 
Committee.  

✓ This is to ensure openness and 
transparency in the Council’s decision 
making 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Cllr Robins & Cllr 
Crawford 
Engagement 

 

• Accepting minor amendments 
to approved plans 

• Undertaking screening opinions 
and determining the need for 

Section 2.11 

• Accepting Material minor amendments 
(Section 73 applications) and/or non-
material minor amendments (Section 
96a Applications) to approved plans 

The section is proposed to be amended 
in the following way: 

 

• To clarify that Material minor 
amendments/non-material minor 

✓ In respect of amendments to planning 
permissions, the proposed amendment 
tidies up the existing wording and uses 
the correct legislative references 

✓ Adding “adopt” to the current wording 
around EIA Screening/Scoping opinions 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 

15



Annex B 

an Environmental Impact 
Assessment statement for 
developments that require 
planning permission 

• No prior reference to 
Habitat’s regulations. 

• To adopt screening and scoping 
opinions under the Environmental 
Impact Assessment Regulations 

• To carry out and adopt Appropriate 
Assessment under the Habitats 
Regulations. 

 

amendments can be dealt with by 
Officers 

• EIA screening and scoping opinions 
– added the word “Adopt” 

• To carry out and adopt Appropriate 
Assessments under the Habitats 
Regulations – added 

• Authority to make Tree Preservation 
Orders (moved elsewhere) 

means we are using the correct legal 
terminology 

✓ Appropriate Assessments are required in 
relation to schemes that potentially affect 
European Designated sites such as 
Special Areas of Conservation. These are 
carried out as part of the decision making 
process. Where one has been carried 
out, it doesn’t mean that the planning 
application wouldn’t be referred to 
Committee in the normal way. 
 

(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 

[New Revision – no prior 
reference available] 

Section 2.12 
 
To determine the reasons for which planning 
permission, listed building consent, 
conservation area consent, hazardous 
substances consent, or advertisement 
consent, would have been refused where this 
is relevant to appeals against the non-
determination of applications 
 
 
On a without prejudice basis in relation to 
appeals in the event that the Secretary of 
State or the appointed Inspector is minded to 
grant permission;  
o To suggest appropriate conditions to be 

imposed on planning permission, listed 
building consent, conservation area 
consent, hazardous substances consent 
or advertisement consent; and 

o To approve/make comments on the terms 
of Section 106 Agreements or Unilateral 
Undertakings 

 

The section is proposed to be amended 
in the following way: 
 

• Officers can determine the 
reasons why an application would 
have been refused in the event of 
an appeal against non-
determination 

• Officers can, on a non-prejudicial 
basis, suggest conditions and 
planning obligations in relation to 
planning appeals 

 

✓ This wouldn’t prevent Planning 
Committee taking these decisions on the 
larger schemes in the event of a non-
determination appeal 

✓ In relation to conditions and planning 
obligations, this is usual practice and has 
been added in order to ensure clarity.   

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 

The Assistant Director, Growth and 
Development is authorised to carry 
out, and authorise in writing other 
officers with necessary training and 
qualifications, the following 
functions: 

• Administer cautions in respect of 
breaches of advertisement 
control and in order cases 
where, following authorisation, 
court proceedings are 
considered appropriate 

• Serve, in consultation with the 
Assistant Director, Legal and 
Democratic, breach of condition 
notices relating to the 

Section 3 
The Assistant Director of Planning is 
authorised to carry out, and authorise in 
writing other officers with necessary training 
and qualifications, the following functions: 
 

• Administer cautions in respect of breaches 
of advertisement control and in order 
cases where, following authorisation, court 
proceedings are considered appropriate. 

• To make determinations that it is not 
expedient to take enforcement action 

• To remove or obliterate unauthorised 
placards or posters or display structures 
under the Town and Country Planning Act. 

• To serve Requisitions for Information 
requiring information as to interests in land 

• It is clarified within this section 
that Officers can make a decision 
that it is not expedient to take 
enforcement action 

• The language in relation to 
serving Planning Contravention 
Notices has been tidied up 

✓ This is clarified so that everyone is clear 
that Officers can make these decisions.  
Previous legal advice is that Officers are 
able to make these decisions however it 
is clearer if they are specified. 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 

16



Annex B 

implementation of planning 
permissions and conditions 
containing a precedent 
requirement 

• Remove or obliterate 
unauthorised placards and 
posters 

• Serve written notice requiring 
information as to interests in 
land or, if related to a planning 
contravention notice, activities 
carried out on the land 

• To serve the following notices in 
consultation with the Service 
Manager, Development 
Management and 
Implementation and Legal 
Services: 
▪ Enforcement notice 
▪ Breach of condition notice 
▪ Section 215 notice 
▪ Listed building 
enforcement notice 
▪ Hazardous substance 
notice 
▪ Stop notice 
▪ Temporary stop notice 

or, if related to a planning contravention 
notice, activities carried out on the land 

• To serve Planning Contravention Notices 
on owners and occupiers of land where it 
appears that a breach of planning control 
has taken place 

• To serve the following notices following 
consultation with the Assistant Director for 
Legal and Democratic: 
▪ Enforcement notice 
▪ Breach of condition notice 
▪ Section 215 notice under the Town 

and Country Planning Act 
▪ Listed building enforcement notice 
▪ Hazardous substance Enforcement 

notice 
▪ Discontinuance Notices under the 

Control of Advertisement 
Regulations 

▪ Stop notice 
▪ Temporary stop notice 

 

[New Revision – no prior 
reference available] 

Section 3.2 

• To accept or reject such offers to 
remedy a breach of control as are 
made under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990  

• To authorise the institution of legal 
proceedings in respect of any matter 
within the terms of reference of the 
Planning Committee and following 
consultation with Legal Services 

• To authorise the institution of legal 
proceedings for failure to respond to, 
or to give satisfactory information 
required by Requisitions for 
Information, or Planning Contravention 
Notices. 

 

The following have been added: 
 

• To accept or reject offers to 
remedy a breach of control as are 
made under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990  

• To authorise the institution of 
legal proceedings in respect of 
any matter within the terms of 
reference of the Planning 
Committee and following 
consultation with Legal Services. 

• To authorise the institution of 
legal proceedings for failure to 
respond to, or to give satisfactory 
information required by 
Requisitions for Information, or 
Planning Contravention Notices.  

 

✓ These points have been added so that it 
is clear that Officers are able to resolve 
breaches of planning control as 
appropriate.   

✓ It is in the public interest to ensure that 
breaches are resolved and this can 
include the developer/landowners 
resolving issues without formal action. 

✓ Officers need to be able to instruct legal 
proceedings against failure to comply 
with an Enforcement notice for example, 
however this should always be following 
legal advice. 

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 
Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 

[New Revision – no prior 
reference available] 

Section 3.3 
Listed below are the circumstances where 
enforcement matters will be presented to the 
Planning Committee. All other matters will be 

✓ Instances where enforcement 
matters will be presented to 
Committee have been added  

✓ This aligns with planning applications and 
is in the interests of transparency and 
openness.  

27th September 
Informal Planning 
Committee 
 

17



Annex B 

dealt with by the ADP, or other duly authorised 
officer: 
i. Where the case involves a Member of 

the Council (or an immediate relative) 
or any employee of the Council (or an 
immediate relative). 

ii. Where there is a contravention of 
planning control involving the Council's 
own development that is unresolved 
through the planning system. 

iii. Issues of significant public interest. 

 
 

Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 
Enforcement 
Comments at 
committee noted. 

N/A Section 5 
 

✓ This section has been renamed 
“planning policy” 

  

[New Revision – no prior 
reference available] 

Section 5.3 
 
After consultation with the appropriate Portfolio 
Holder, to respond to policy and other planning 
documents relevant to the Council, prepared by 
other bodies. 

 

Addition of statement. ✓ This addition is to ensure clarity over the 
ability to respond to consultations which 
include those from Central Government 
so far as they relate to Planning Matters.   

Discussion with 
Cllr Robins 
(Cabinet Member 
for Planning & 
Planning Policy) 
 
Discussed with 
Cllr Crawford 
(Chair of 
Planning) 
 

 

 

 

18



 

  

This page has been intentionally left blank 

19



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

 

 

  

Guidance For Members and Officers Dealing 

with Planning Matters 

 

A Local Code of Good Practice 

 

Draft – 11th November 

20



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

POSITIVE ENGAGEMENT: A GUIDE FOR COUNCILLORS INVOLVED IN MAKING 

PLANNING DECISIONS - GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE NOTE  

SUMMARY  

Councillors can involve themselves in discussions with developers, their constituents and 

others about planning matters. Difficulties can be avoided if you follow these useful general 

hints.  

Do  

• involve officers and structure discussions with developers  

• inform officers about any approaches made to you and seek advice  

• familiarise yourself with the Code of Conduct and follow it when you are representing the 

Council  

• keep your register of interests up to date 

• be aware of what fairness and impartiality mean in your role  

• be prepared to hold discussions with an applicant and officers before a planning 

application is made, not just after it has been submitted  

• preface any discussion with disclaimers; keep a note of important meetings and calls; and 

make clear at the outset that discussions are not binding  

• be aware of what Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, personal and prejudicial interests are – 

refer to the Monitoring Officer or the Code of Conduct if you are unsure  

• recognise the distinction between giving advice and engaging in negotiation and when this 

is appropriate in your role  

• stick to policies included in adopted plans, but also pay heed to any other considerations 

relevant to planning  

• use meetings to show leadership and vision  

• encourage positive outcomes  

• recognise that you can lobby and campaign but that this may remove you from the decision 

making process  

• feed in both your own and your local community’s concerns and issues  

• be aware that you can engage in discussions, but you must have and be seen to have an 

open mind at the point of decision making.  

 

Do not  

• use your position improperly for personal gain or to advantage your friends or close 

associates  

• meet developers alone or put yourself in a position where you appear to favour a person, 

company or group – even a ‘friendly’ private discussion with a developer could cause 

others to mistrust your impartiality.  

• attend meetings or be involved in decision-making where you have a Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest or a prejudicial interest – except when speaking where the general 

public are also allowed to do so  

• accept gifts or hospitality  

• prejudge or be seen to prejudge an issue if you want to be a decision maker on a proposal  

• seek to influence officers or put pressure on them to support a particular course of action 

in relation to a planning application  

• compromise the impartiality of people who work for the Council 

• invent local guides or policies 

21



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

1. Introduction  

This Protocol sets out the practices and procedures that Members and Officers at 

South Kesteven District Council should follow when determining planning applications. 

2. Basic Principles 

The basis of the planning system is to manage development in the public interest.  

Planning is often very contentious because planning decisions affect the private 

interests of individuals, landowners and developers. Decisions are taken based on 

informed judgement with a firm policy basis.  

The Planning process relies on transparency in decision making and officers and 

members must act fairly and with integrity.  

Development proposals that are policy compliant should be approved without delay. 

Members have a duty to represent their constituents but also an overriding duty to the 

wider community.   

3. The role of the Planning Committee 

The role of a Planning Committee is to determine major or more complex applications 

that raise issues of more than immediate local importance.  The intention is to allow 

Councillors to focus on applications needing additional scrutiny where added member 

value in balancing conflicting pressures is important. This of course does not mean 

that minor applications cannot be referred to Committee where they raise issues of 

more than local importance. 

Councillors are encouraged to engage with the planning process early, and often many 

issues can be resolved without applications needing to be referred to Committee for a 

decision.  For example, by raising issues early it may be possible to address concerns 

through amendments, additional information and/or planning conditions. 

Referral to Planning Committee shouldn’t be used to arbitrate between competing 

interest groups or to put off making difficult decisions.  Applications should not normally 

be referred to Planning Committee simply to allow an objector/applicant an opportunity 

to air their views in a public forum. 

Householder or very minor applications should not normally be referred to Planning 

Committee and it is expected that Councillors will work with officers to resolve any 

concerns arising from the proposal.  

4. Your Role as a Member of the Planning Authority 

 

To make planning decisions openly, impartially and with sound judgement for justifiable 

reasons.  

 

5. Relationship to the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Do apply the rules within the Members’ Code of Conduct First as these must always be 

complied with. 

 

The guidance in this note seeks to explain and supplement the Members’ Code of 

Conduct for the purposes of the Planning System. If you do not abide by this Code of 

22



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

Local Practice you may not necessarily have breached the Members’ Code of Conduct 

but you may put the Council at risk of proceedings regarding legality or 

maladministration of the related decision.  

 

6. Development Proposals and Interests under the Members’ Code of Conduct 

 

Members should declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) in accordance with 

the Council’s Code of Conduct. These should be declared at the beginning of the 

Meeting and not at the start of the discussion on any particular matter. However, if you 

become aware of a DPI after the start of the meeting you should declare it as soon as 

possible.  

 

Where you have a DPI you should not participate, or give the appearance of trying to 

participate in the decision making process.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

 

7. Fettering Discretion in the Planning Process 

 

Members making a decision on any planning application as part of the Planning 

Committee must ensure that they have not already fettered their discretion.  This means 

that you should come to any Planning Committee Meeting with an open mind.  Whilst 

you should familiarise yourself with the application and the reports ahead of the 

Committee, it is important that you haven’t made your mind up on how you will vote at 

the meeting of the Planning Committee (or Full Council) until you have heard the 

officer’s presentation and all of the evidence and arguments on both sides.  

 

If you have fettered your discretion, it is important that you do not speak and vote on a 

proposal.   

 

The Monitoring Officer will be able to provide you with any specific guidance or discuss 

any particular concerns with you ahead of any meeting.  

 

8. Lobbying of Councillors 

Lobbying is a normal and perfectly proper part of the political process and those who 

may be affected by a proposal will often seek to influence the decision by approaching 

their Local Councillors or Members of the Planning Committee.  

 

Members of the Planning Committee are free to listen to any point of view about a 

particular planning application, however you should avoid expressing an opinion which 

may indicate that they or the authority has reached a final conclusion until all of the 

relevant arguments and evidence has been put before the Planning Committee.  

Advice to the public should be restricted to procedural matters, including making the 

relevant Officer aware so that material opinions can be reflected in the report. 

23



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

 Where a member of the Planning Committee goes on record in support of a particular 

outcome, or campaign actively for it, it will be difficult for that member to argue 

convincingly that he/she has attended the Committee with an open mind.  If there is an 

appearance of bias or pre-determination then the decision may be vulnerable to a 

challenge by way of a Judicial Review.   

 

9. Lobbying by Councillors 

 

Members will be able to speak on behalf of a body of opinion, however the Committee 

should be made aware as to such opinion as distinct from personal views. 

There should be no party-political grouping on how to vote on applications prior to a 

Planning Committee Meeting, or similar voting because an application is moved by a 

member of the same party. 

Members should not lobby or trade with other Committee Members for a particular 

outcome. 

Whilst a Member can speak on behalf of a body of opinion, they should not personally 

be involved in organising support for or against that opinion. 

Members not serving on the Planning Committee may speak to the Committee in 

accordance with Standing Orders, however, the member attending shall not take part 

in the voting on any item.  

 

 

10. Public Speaking at Meetings 

Any member of the Public, Parish or Town Council has the right to speak in accordance 

with the Rules of Procedure for Public Speaking at Planning Committee (Article 9). 

Their views, insofar as they are material planning considerations, should be taken 

account of with other available information and evidence.   

11. Decision Making 

Members should determine applications in accordance with advice given, including 

verbal updates to reports, unless they have good planning reasons to the contrary and 

in the knowledge of all the available information and evidence. 

Decisions on planning applications have to be taken in accordance with the 

Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  In determining 

any application the Committee is not bound by the recommendation of their officers.  

This means that the Committee is entitled to decide the weight to be attached to the 

various planning considerations that are relevant to the applications. This can 

sometimes result in a decision which is contrary to the recommendation of Officers (an 

Overturn).   

 

For example, the Committee could decide any of the following: 

• To refuse planning permission where Officers have recommended approval; 

• To approve planning permission where Officers have recommended refusal; 

24



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

• Agree with Officers that planning permission should be refused but for different 

reasons; or 

• Grant permission subject to different conditions or legal requirements to those 

recommended.  

Where members wish to determine an application contrary to the recommendation, 

they should indicate the material reason(s) for doing so at the meeting and these will 

be detailed in the minutes to the Meeting. Where a motion is put forwards that is 

contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chairman will ensure that the planning 

reasons for reaching this motion are clear. 

If the Committee is minded to make a decision contrary to the recommendation, the 

relevant officer (including Legal) will be given the opportunity to outline the implications 

for the Committee of such a decision. 

If the Committee wish to add or amend conditions, an Officer will be invited to draft 

such a condition. A detailed minute of the reasons for the Committee’s action should 

be made.   

Where a motion is proposed and seconded for a decision that would differ from the 

Officers recommendation it is important that the Members voting for that motion are 

clear what it is.  For example, in the case of an overturn where the motion is to refuse 

an application recommended for approval, you must be clear as to the reasons for 

refusal. This means that you are clear as to the substance of the reason(s) for refusal 

including the policies that the proposal is contrary to. If you are not clear you should 

ask for clarification before voting. 

 

Officers may make slight amendments to the wording of any new reasons for refusal 

or conditions following Committee although they will not alter their meaning. 

 

Do not vote on a proposal unless you have been present to hear the entire debate 

including the Officer’s introduction and presentation on the application.  

Minutes will relate to the planning reasons for the decision specifically whether: 

•It is in accordance with development plan policies, or 

•Other material considerations indicate otherwise (and what they are) 

•In the case of an approval, the relevant matters to be addressed by planning 

conditions 

 

12. Training 

As set out in the Constitution, Councillors can only sit on the Planning Committee 

where they have received the mandatory training.  

Officers will ensure that there is annual training is provided and this will be available to 

all Councillors; it is your responsibility to ensure that you attend this training.   

25



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

In addition to the annual mandatory training session Officers will provide other training 

sessions throughout the year on a variety of topics.  Members are encouraged to attend 

as many off these training sessions as possible.   

Members are encouraged to identify any topics that they would like to have training 

upon.  

Annually, the Committee will visit a sample of implemented permissions to assess the 

quality of those decisions. These will take place at 6 monthly intervals. 

The outcome of appeals will be reviewed by Planning Committee at 6 monthly intervals 

to outline feedback and lessons learned. 

 

13. Process 

All members will be notified by email of individual applications within their wards.  

Where an application site straddles a ward boundary, Councillors from all of the wards 

concerned will be notified.  Where a site is located adjacent to the boundary of a Ward, 

the adjoining Ward Councillors will be notified. 

All Councillors will continue to receive the Weekly list setting out applications received 

by the Council.  Members will also receive updates relating to enforcement cases 

where it has been established that there is a breach of planning control. 

Members are encouraged to view the plans online and contact the case officer if there 

are any queries or matters they wish to discuss. 

Officers are encouraged to contact Councillors where they feel that a matter may be 

contentious and this should be done as soon as possible in the process.  

If a Ward Councillor or adjoining Ward Councillor wishes any application to be 

considered by the Planning Committee they should advise the Case Officer in writing 

and clearly state the planning issues that give them concern. The Councillor making 

this request must also demonstrate that the proposal would have such a prejudicial 

impact or effect on the area of District or its residents to warrant determination by 

Planning Committee. This should be done as soon as possible and within 21 days of 

first being notified of the receipt of the application.  

It is understood that sometimes there may be extenuating circumstances where it was 

not possible to make a request to call an application to Committee within the initial 21 

day notification period.  For example this could be due to additional information coming 

to light after the notification period.  If this is the case Councillors should submit their 

request in writing providing the reasons for the late request along with the planning 

reasons for the call-in.  The request will need to be agreed with the Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of the Committee; if they disagree with the call-in request you will be 

informed.  Councillors are however encouraged to make any request to call an 

application to Committee as soon as possible to avoid unnecessary delays in the 

determination of applications. 

Where a request is made for an application to be considered by the Planning 

Committee is agreed by the Chairman of the Planning Committee then the reason 

given for the referral will be included in the report.  

26



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

Where a request for Committee referral is not agreed with, the Ward Councillor(s) 

making the request will be informed.  

It is expected that if the concerns that gave rise to the Committee referral request are 

addressed through amendments to the application or conditions, the referral request 

will be withdrawn. 

14. Reports to Committee 

The advice from the Courts and Ombudsman  have determined officer reports on 

planning applications must have regard to the following points:  

• reports should be accurate and cover, amongst other things, the substance of any 

objections and the views of those consulted; 

• relevant information should include a clear exposition of the development plan; site 

or related history; and any other material considerations;  

• reports should have a written recommendation of action. Oral reporting (except to 

update a report) should be avoided and carefully minuted when it does occur;  

• reports should contain technical appraisals which clearly justify a recommendation;  

• if the report’s recommendation is contrary to the provisions of the development plan, 

the material considerations which justify the departure must be clearly stated. It is 

particularly important to do so, not only as a matter of good practice, but because 

failure may constitute maladministration, or give rise to judicial review on the 

grounds that the decision was not taken in accordance with the provisions of the 

development plan and the council’s statutory duty under s38A of the Planning and 

Compensation Act 2004 

 

15. Decisions contrary to Officer Recommendations and subsequent Appeals 

 

In determining planning applications, the Planning Committee is entitled to decide the 

weight to be attached to the various planning matters (benefits and harms) that are 

relevant to the application. This may lead to a decision that is different to the 

recommendation of the Officers 

 

In these circumstances, it is essential that reasons for the difference of opinion are clear 

in the minds of the Committee members.   

 

Where an appeal to the Secretary of State is subsequently lodged against a decision 

made contrary to the Officer’s recommendations, Planning Officers (and other Officers 

as appropriate) will normally act as professional witnesses to present the Council’s case 

at public inquiries and local hearings. However, where this would prejudice the outcome, 

the Assistant Director of Planning may ask Members to conduct the appeal1. In this 

instance the Planning Committee will need to be prepared to identify a Councillor(s) to 

support the case at a public inquiry or local hearing.  This would normally be the 

Councillors who proposed and seconded the reasons for the refusal. The Assistant 

Director of Planning and the planning team will support the Members in the preparation 

of the case as appropriate.  

 
1 In public inquiries Officers can only give evidence based upon their professional beliefs.  The Royal Town 
Planning Institute (RTPI) Code of Conduct does not allow it’s  members to make or subscribe to any statements 
or reports that are contrary to their own bona fide professional opinions.  

27



 Annex C 
 

Annex C 

 

16.  Site Visits 

 

Members can make site visits. However, they must avoid contact with the 

applicants/objectors and maintain probity during the process of determination. 

Members will decline invitations from developers to attend private site visits where 

additional information may be presented prior to committee. 

 

Health and Safety & Lone Working considerations are the responsibility of the Member. 

Members do not have rights of access upon private land and such visits must be 

undertaken from the public highway or via public rights of way. 

 

Ward members will be able to request a site visit for any application that is being 

referred to Planning Committee for a decision. Councillors should give reasons for the 

site visit so that Officers and Councillors are clear what elements of a proposal or site 

need to be viewed.  Where a request is made, site visits will be agreed for inclusion by 

the Assistant Director of Planning in consultation with the Chair or Vice-Chair of the 

Planning Committee; site visits will take place where it is clear that the visit will add 

value to the consideration of the application. 

 

Site visits will be led by a Council Officer who will explain the proposals in the context 

of the site.  They will also explain the reasons why the site visit has been called. 

 

Any third party at the site visit including the applicant will not be permitted to address 

Councillors.  On occasion, it might be necessary to ask a point of clarification or fact of 

a third party however this will be at the Lead Officer or Chairman’s discretion.   

 

Details of the site visit including who attended will be recorded by the lead officer in 

attendance.  

 

The purpose of the site visit is to establish facts about the site and it’s surroundings.  

No decisions will be made at the site visit. 

 

Ideally site visits should be requested pre-committee to avoid delays in the decision-

making process. However, the Committee may resolve that a decision is deferred 

pending a Member Site visit. This must be moved and voted upon in the usual way 

during Planning Committee at any time after the Officers presentation.  The reasons for 

the site visit must be established and clearly recorded in the minutes.  

 

 

28


	Agenda
	2 Revision to the planning protocol and accompanying guidance
	Annex A - Proposed Revisions to Article 16 of Constitution
	Annex B - Planning Review Amends Table
	Annex C - Guidance For Members and Officers Dealing with Planning Matters


